
 

M2703 1 

N
e
ls

o
n
 C

ity
 C

o
u
n
c
il M

in
u
te

s
 - 2

1
 Ju

n
e
 2

0
1
7
 

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Nelson City Council 

Held in the Council Chamber, Civic House, 110 Trafalgar Street, 

Nelson 

On Wednesday 21 June 2017, commencing at 9.00am  
 

Present: Her Worship the Mayor R Reese (Chairperson), Councillors L 

Acland, I Barker, M Courtney, B Dahlberg, K Fulton, M Lawrey, 
P Matheson, B McGurk, G Noonan, M Rutledge, T Skinner and 
S Walker 

In Attendance: Group Manager Strategy and Environment (C Barton), 
Communications Adviser (C Crick), Team Leader 

Administration Advisers (Robyn Byrne) and Administration 
Adviser (E-J Ruthven). 

 

Opening Prayer 

Councillor Noonan gave the opening prayer. 

1. Apologies  

Resolved CL/2017/230 

That the Council 

Receives and accepts the apologies from 

Councillors Rutledge and Skinner for lateness. 

Her Worship the Mayor/Walker  Carried 

2. Confirmation of Order of Business  

There was no change to the order of business. 
 

3. Interests 

There were no updates to the Interests Register. 

Her Worship the Mayor addressed the issue in relation to conflicts of 

interest.  She said she found the bylaw provisions in relation to protest 
challenging but noted she had come to the conclusion that she had the 

ability to sit with an open mind to go through the Special Consultative 



 

2 M2703 

N
e
ls

o
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 M

in
u
te

s
 -

 2
1
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
7
 

Process and suspend her own personal views to make decisions after 
hearing from the community.  

Point of Order:  A point of order was raised that this statement was misleading.  
The point of order was declined. 

4. Late Submissions on the Draft City Amenity Bylaw 

Document number R7936, agenda pages 4 - 14 refer.  

Resolved CL/2017/231 

That the Council 

Receives the report Late Submissions on the 

Draft City Amenity Bylaw (R7936) and its 
attachment (A1771441); and 

Accepts the five late submissions on the Draft 
City Amenity Bylaw. 

Noonan/Her Worship the Mayor  Carried 

     

5. Hearing of Submissions on the Draft City Amenity Bylaw 

5.1 MR GRAEME O'BRIEN (SUBMISSION 13134) DEMOCRACY NOW 

MR O’BRIEN SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION AND TABLED A DOCUMENT 

(A1802719).  HE ANSWERED QUESTIONS REGARDING PART 13 OF THE 
BYLAW AND SAID THERE SHOULD HAVE BEEN PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT 
PRIOR TO THE COUNCIL DECISION TO ESTABLISH A BYLAW.  

ATTACHMENTS 

1 A1802719 - GRAEME O'BRIEN TABLED DOCUMENT  

5.2 MR DAN MCGUIRE (SUBMISSION 12880)   

MR MCGUIRE SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION.  HE SUGGESTED THE BYLAW 
WOULD BE TESTED IN COURT AT THE RATEPAYERS’ EXPENSE.   

5.3 MR MIKE CUNLIFFE FOR MS SARAH MARTIN (SUBMISSION 13133) ON 
BEHALF OF PUBLIC SERVICE ASSOCIATION  

MR CUNLIFFE SPOKE TO THE PUBLIC SERVICE ASSOCIATION (PSA) 
SUBMISSION AND CONFIRMED THE PSA WISHED TO HAVE THE BYLAW 
WITHDRAWN.  HE ANSWERED QUESTIONS AND AGREED THAT 

NOTIFICATION IN PART 13 AS OPPOSED TO A PERMIT WOULD BE 
ACCEPTABLE. 

ATTENDANCE:  COUNCILLORS RUTLEDGE AND SKINNER JOINED THE MEETING 
AT 9.45AM  



 

M2703 3 

N
e
ls

o
n
 C

ity
 C

o
u
n
c
il M

in
u
te

s
 - 2

1
 Ju

n
e
 2

0
1
7
 

 

5.4 MS RAEWYN SCOTT (SUBMISSION 13081) 

THE SUBMITTER DID NOT ATTEND THE HEARING. 

5.5 MR DARRYL WARE (SUBMISSION 13106)   

MR WARE SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION.  HE ANSWERED QUESTIONS 
AND AGREED THAT NOTIFICATION FOR PROTESTS WOULD BE 
ACCEPTABLE.  

5.6 MR TOM TAYLOR (SUBMISSION 13253)  

MR TAYLOR SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION AND ANSWERED QUESTIONS.  

5.7 MS SUSAN HAWTHORNE (SUBMISSION 13115) VOICE NELSON  

MS HAWTHORNE SPOKE TO HER SUBMISSION AND NOTED PART 13 
WAS THE ASPECT THAT CONCERNED HER MOST.  SHE ANSWERED 

QUESTIONS AND AGREED THAT NOTIFICATION FOR PROTESTS WOULD 
BE ACCEPTABLE.     

5.8 MR LAWRENCE CARTER (SUBMISSION 13113)   

MR CARTER SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION AND TABLED A DOCUMENT 
(A1802862). HE ANSWERED QUESTIONS AND SUGGESTED THAT THE 

PROPOSED BYLAW DID NOT PROVIDE REASONABLE BALANCE.   

ATTACHMENTS 

1 A1802862 - LAWRENCE CARTER TABLED DOCUMENT  

5.9 MR PETER RILEY (SUBMISSION 13120)  

THE SUBMITTER DID NOT ATTEND THE HEARING. 

5.10 MS EVEY MCAULIFFE (SUBMISSION 13124)   

MS MCAULIFFE SPOKE TO HER SUBMISSION AND ANSWERED 

QUESTIONS. SHE NOTED THAT THERE HAD BEEN NO ISSUE WITH 
PROTESTS IN NELSON AND FELT THE BYLAW WAS NOT NECESSARY.  

ATTENDANCE: COUNCILLOR LAWREY LEFT THE MEETING FROM 10.15AM TO 
10.22AM. 

5.11 MR CARL HORN (13179)  

MR HORN SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION AND PROPOSED SPECIFIC 
AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAW.  HE SUGGESTED THAT PERMITS AND 

FINES WERE NOT NECESSARY, AND THAT EXPERTS SHOULD BE CALLED 
IN TO DEAL WITH PEOPLE SLEEPING IN THE STREET.  MR HORN 
ANSWERED QUESTIONS. 



 

4 M2703 

N
e
ls

o
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 M

in
u
te

s
 -

 2
1
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
7
 

5.12 MS JAN MARSH (13129) NELSON RELIGIOUS SOCIETY OF FRIENDS 
(QUAKERS) 

MS MARSH SPOKE TO THE SUBMISSION FROM THE NELSON RELIGIOUS 
SOCIETY OF FRIENDS (NELSON QUAKERS) AND ADVISED THAT NELSON 

QUAKERS WERE CONCERNED THAT THEIR RIGHT OF FREE SPEECH OR 
THE ABILITY TO SET UP A STALL OUTSIDE A SHOP, WITH THE 
PERMISSION OF THE SHOP OWNER, WOULD BE IMPEDED.  

ATTENDANCE: THE MEETING ADJOURNED FOR MORNING TEA FROM 10.29 AM 
TO 10.45AM. 

5.13 MR BRENDAN SANTORINI (SUBMISSION 13343)  

MR SANTORINI SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION AND ANSWERED 
QUESTIONS.  HE SUGGESTED THAT THE WELLINGTON CITY COUNCIL 

CONSOLIDATED BYLAW OF 2008 WAS A BETTER OPTION. 

5.14 MRS JACQUIE WALTERS (12903) WALTERS PR  

MRS WALTERS SPOKE TO HER SUBMISSION AND ANSWERED 
QUESTIONS. SHE NOTED HER CONCERNS WITH BANNING SLEEPING IN 
THE CENTRAL CITY WITHOUT AN AVAILABLE AND COMPASSIONATE 

ALTERNATIVE, AND SUGGESTED THERE WAS NO ISSUE WITH PROTESTS 
BEING PROBLEMATIC. 

ATTENDANCE: COUNCILLOR RUTLEDGE LEFT THE MEETING FROM 10.55 AM TO 
11.00AM. 

5.15 MRS ALI BOSWIJK (13164) 

MRS BOSWIJK SPOKE TO HER SUBMISSION AND NOTED THAT THERE 
WAS A NEED TO HAVE AN ENVIRONMENT BENEFICIAL TO BUSINESS IN 

THE CBD HOWEVER SHE FELT THE PROPOSED BYLAW WAS GOING TOO 
FAR IN TOO MANY DIRECTIONS 

5.16 MS DEBS MARTIN (13149)  

MS MARTIN SPOKE TO HER SUBMISSION.  SHE NOTED THAT THERE 
WAS NO HISTORY OF COMPLAINTS REGARDING PROTEST MARCHES 

AND SUGGESTED COUNCIL SHOULD BE CONCERNED WITH PEOPLE 
SLEEPING ON THE STREETS.  SHE ANSWERED QUESTIONS RELATING 

TO PUBLIC SAFETY AND SUGGESTED THIS WAS THE RESPONSIBILITY 
OF THE POLICE, RATHER THAN COUNCIL.   

5.17 MS JULIE NEVIN (13121)  

MS NEVIN SPOKE TO HER SUBMISSION AND ANSWERED QUESTIONS ON 
COUNCIL’S DECISION TO DEVELOP THE PROPOSED BYLAW.   

5.18 MR MURRAY LEANING (13160) 

THE SUBMITTER DID NOT ATTEND THE HEARING. 



 

M2703 5 

N
e
ls

o
n
 C

ity
 C

o
u
n
c
il M

in
u
te

s
 - 2

1
 Ju

n
e
 2

0
1
7
 

5.19 MR RICHARD SULLIVAN (13163)  

MR SULLIVAN SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION VIA TELECONFERENCE AND 

NOTED HE OPPOSED THE DRAFT BYLAW IN ITS ENTIRETY.  

ATTENDANCE: COUNCILLOR NOONAN LEFT THE MEETING FROM 11.32AM TO 

11.36AM. 

5.20 MS AMI KENNEDY (13192) FRIENDS OF THE MAITAI 

MS KENNEDY SPOKE HER SUBMISSION.  

5.21 MR IAN DAY (13165)  

MR DAY SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION AND SUGGESTED THE DRAFT 

BYLAW WOULD INCREASE BUREAUCRACY AND BE A COST TO RATES.  
HE ANSWERED QUESTIONS AND SUGGESTED THAT THE PERCEPTION OF 
THE DRAFT BYLAW WAS THAT RIGHTS WERE BEING TAKEN AWAY FROM 

THE PUBLIC.  

5.22 MR BILL LEWIS (13335)  

MR LEWIS SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION.  

5.23 PENNY MOLNAR (13256)  

PENNY MOLNAR AND RACHEL BOYACK SPOKE TO THE SUBMISSION 

FROM COMMUNITY ACTION NETWORK AND ANSWERED QUESTIONS.  
THEY ASKED COUNCIL TO CONSIDER THE WIDER IMPLICATIONS OF THE 

DRAFT BYLAW. 

ATTENDANCE: COUNCILLORS RUTLEDGE AND NOONAN LEFT THE MEETING 

FROM 11.55AM TO 11.59AM, COUNCILLOR SKINNER LEFT THE MEETING FROM 
11.58AM TO 12.01PM, AND COUNCILLOR MATHESON LEFT THE MEETING FROM 
12.03PM TO 12.06PM.   

5.24 MS ALISON ARRON (13210)   

MS ARRON ADVISED THAT MR MIKE CUNLIFFE HAD ASKED HER TO 

PRESENT A PETITION, ASKING COUNCIL TO ADOPT THE WELLINGTON 
CITY COUNCIL BYLAW PROVISIONS REGARDING PROTESTS.  SHE 
NOTED IT HAD BEEN SIGNED BY OVER 500 PEOPLE. HER WORSHIP THE 

MAYOR RECEIVED THE PETITION (A1802949).  

MS ARRON SPOKE TO HER SUBMISSION AND ANSWERED QUESTIONS. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1 A1802949 - ALISON ARRON PETITION  

ATTENDANCE: COUNCILLOR DAHLBERG LEFT THE MEETING FROM 12.17PM TO 

12.21PM.  

5.25 MR STEPHEN RALPH LEE (13360)  



 

6 M2703 

N
e
ls

o
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 M

in
u
te

s
 -

 2
1
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
7
 

MR LEE SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION AND ANSWERED QUESTIONS. 

5.26 MR RICHARD OSMASTON (13188)  NZ MONEY FREE PARTY  

MR OSMASTON SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION AND ANSWERED 
QUESTIONS.  HE NOTED HE OBJECTED TO THE DRAFT BYLAW AS IT 

TOOK AWAY THE OPPORTUNITY FOR PEOPLES’ VOICE TO BE HEARD. 

5.27 SUMMARY 

HER WORSHIP THE MAYOR ASKED COUNCILLORS WHAT INFORMATION 

THEY WOULD LIKE TO SEE IN THE OFFICER REPORT TO THE 
DELIBERATIONS MEETING, AND THE FOLLOWING WAS REQUESTED: 

 WHAT INPUT FROM PUBLIC COULD HAVE BEEN INCLUDED IN THE  
PROCESS OF DRAWING UP A BYLAW; 

 A COPY OF THE WELLINGTON CITY COUNCIL DOCUMENT 

REFERRED TO IN THE PETITION; AND 

 A LIST OF SIMILAR DRAFT BYLAWS FROM OTHER COUNCILS, 

NOTING THAT OFFICERS HAD REFERRED TO THESE PREVIOUSLY.  

ATTENDANCE: THE MEETING ADJOURNED FOR LUNCH FROM 12.35PM TO 
1.35PM, DURING WHICH TIME COUNCILLORS ACLAND, LAWREY AND SKINNER 

LEFT THE MEETING. 

IN RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS RAISED BY SUBMITTERS DURING THE 

MORNING SESSION, HER WORSHIP THE MAYOR EXPLAINED THE 
REASONS WHY COUNCIL WAS CONDUCTING THIS BYLAW PROCESS 

RATHER THAN THE PLANNING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE. 

ATTENDANCE:  COUNCILLOR LAWREY RETURNED TO THE MEETING AT 1.36PM. 

5.28 MR GAVIN AMEY (13245)   

THE SUBMITTER DID NOT ATTEND THE HEARING. 

5.29 MR JOHN-PAUL POCHIN (13260) 

MR POCHIN SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION.  HE NOTED HIS CONCERNS 
REGARDING THE DRAFT BYLAW, AND IN PARTICULAR, HOW IT WOULD 
AFFECT HOMELESS PEOPLE LIVING IN NELSON. 

ATTENDANCE:  COUNCILLOR ACLAND RETURNED TO THE MEETING AT 1.39PM, 
COUNCILLOR SKINNER RETURNED TO THE MEETING AT 1.42PM, AND 

COUNCILLOR FULTON LEFT THE MEETING AT 1.43PM. 

5.30 MR FRANK SAXTON ON BEHALF OF MR BRENT HIGGINS (13226)   

MR SAXTON TABLED A COPY OF MR HIGGINS’ SUBMISSION (A1803328), 

WHICH HE READ. 



 

M2703 7 

N
e
ls

o
n
 C

ity
 C

o
u
n
c
il M

in
u
te

s
 - 2

1
 Ju

n
e
 2

0
1
7
 

ATTACHMENTS 

1 A1803328 - BRENT HIGGINS TABLED DOCUMENT  

ATTENDANCE:  COUNCILLOR FULTON RETURNED TO THE MEETING AT 1.46PM.   

5.31 MR PETER SUTTON (13232)   

MR SUTTON TABLED A DOCUMENT (A1803333) AND SPOKE TO HIS 
SUBMISSION.  HE EMPHASISED THE IMPORTANCE OF PLACING AS FEW 
LIMITS ON RIGHTS AS POSSIBLE AND SUGGESTED THAT LEGAL ACTION 

MAY FOLLOW IF THE DRAFT BYLAW WAS PASSED IN ITS CURRENT 
FORM.  MR SUTTON ANSWERED QUESTIONS. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1 A1803333 - PETER SUTTON TABLED DOCUMENT  

5.32 MR REN KEMPTHORNE (13328)   

THE SUBMITTER DID NOT ATTEND THE HEARING. 

5.33 YOUTH COUNCILLORS (13261)  

JENNA STALLARD, CHEKODI FEARNLEY-FITZGERALD, CASSIE HAGAN 
AND EMILY RAIS SPOKE TO THE YOUTH COUNCIL SUBMISSION.  THEY 
EXPLAINED THAT YOUTH WERE DIVIDED ON THE ISSUE, AND 

EXPLAINED THE VIEWS OF YOUTH IN SUPPORT OF CLAUSE 11, AS WELL 
AS THOSE WHO WERE NOT IN SUPPORT OF CLAUSE 11.   

ATTENDANCE:  COUNCILLOR RUTLEDGE LEFT THE MEETING AT 2.05PM  

MS STALLARD, MS FEARNLEY-FITZGERALD, MS HAGAN AND MS RAIS 

ALSO EMPHASISED THE IMPORTANCE OF EDUCATION AND EASE OF 
OBTAINING PERMITS, SHOULD THE BYLAW GO AHEAD AS DRAFTED, 
AND ANSWERED QUESTIONS. 

ATTENDANCE:  COUNCILLOR FULTON LEFT THE MEETING FROM 2.15PM TO 
2.17PM. 

5.34 AMME HISER (LATE) (13375)  

THE SUBMITTER DID NOT ATTEND THE HEARING. 

5.35 MS LEIGH RAMSAY (13311)   

THE SUBMITTER DID NOT ATTEND THE HEARING. 

5.36 MR NIK RAKELS (13341)   

MR RAKELS SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION AND TABLED A DOCUMENT 
(A1803342).  HE SAID THAT CLAUSE 11 OF THE DRAFT BYLAW WOULD 
HAVE NO EFFECT ON LEWIS STANTON, BUT WOULD AFFECT MANY 

OTHER PEOPLE.  MR RAKELS ANSWERED QUESTIONS. 



 

8 M2703 

N
e
ls

o
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 M

in
u
te

s
 -

 2
1
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
7
 

ATTACHMENTS 

1 A1803342 - NIK RAKELS TABLED DOCUMENT  

5.37 MR PETER RILEY ON BEHALF OF SIR GEOFFREY PALMER (13299)  

MR RILEY SPOKE TO HIS OWN SUBMISSION, AND TO THAT FROM SIR 

GEOFFREY PALMER.  HE EXPRESSED CONCERNS THAT THE DRAFT 
BYLAW BREACHED RIGHTS INCLUDED WITHIN THE NEW ZEALAND BILL 
OF RIGHTS ACT, AND NOTED THAT ANY RESTRICTIONS ON CITIZENS AS 

A RESULT OF THE BYLAW SHOULD BE THE LEAST POSSIBLE INTRUSION 
ON THEIR RIGHT. 

MR RILEY ENCOURAGED COUNCIL TO REACH A MEDIATED OUTCOME 
WITH MR STANTON, AND ANSWERED QUESTIONS. 

5.38 MR JIM CABLE (13353)   

MR CABLE SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION.  HE NOTED THE IMPORTANCE 
OF THE RIGHT TO PROTEST, AND SUGGESTED THE BYLAW INSTEAD 

FOCUS ON PREVENTING PEOPLE FROM SLEEPING ON THE STREETS.  MR 
CABLE ANSWERED QUESTIONS. 

 

 

5.39 MR DAVID AYRE (13259) 

MR AYRE SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION AND OUTLINED HIS CONCERNS 
REGARDING THE BYLAW.  HE NOTED THE COMMUNITY HAD RESPONDED 

STRONGLY TO THE PROPOSED BYLAW AND ENCOURAGED COUNCIL TO 
LISTEN TO COMMUNITY VIEWS ON THE ISSUE.  MR AYRE ANSWERED 
QUESTIONS. 

5.40 MS IONA JELF (13359)   

MS JELF TABLED A DOCUMENT, WHICH SHE READ (A1804559).  SHE 

NOTED HER CONCERNS REGARDING THE REQUIREMENT TO SEEK A 
PERMIT TO PROTEST, AS WELL AS THE CLAUSES IN THE BYLAW 
PREVENTING SLEEPING ON THE STREETS. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1 A1804559 - IONA JELF TABLED DOCUMENT  

ATTENDANCE:  COUNCILLORS MATHESON AND WALKER LEFT THE MEETING AT 
3.00PM. 

5.41 MR BURKE HUNTER (13361)   

MR HUNTER SPOKE ABOUT THE IMPORTANCE OF FREEDOMS OF 
ASSEMBLY, EXPRESSION, ASSOCIATION AND MOVEMENT, AND 

OUTLINED HIS PERSONAL EXPERIENCES OF TAKING PART IN PROTESTS. 



 

M2703 9 

N
e
ls

o
n
 C

ity
 C

o
u
n
c
il M

in
u
te

s
 - 2

1
 Ju

n
e
 2

0
1
7
 

ATTENDANCE:  COUNCILLORS MATHESON AND WALKER RETURNED TO THE 
MEETING AT 3.08PM. 

MR HUNTER ANSWERED QUESTIONS. 

ATTENDANCE:  THE MEETING ADJOURNED FOR AFTERNOON TEA FROM 3.13PM 

TO 3.29PM, AND COUNCILLOR ACLAND LEFT THE MEETING AT 3.30PM. 

5.42 MS DAI MITCHELL (13349)  

MS MITCHELL SPOKE TO HER SUBMISSION.  SHE EXPLAINED HER 

CONCERNS REGARDING THE DRAFT BYLAW IN RELATION TO THE NEW 
ZEALAND BILL OF RIGHTS ACT, AND ADDED HER CONCERNS 

REGARDING THE EFFECT THE DRAFT BYLAW WOULD HAVE ON 
HOMELESS PEOPLE. 

5.43 MS JOANNA PLOWS (13362)   

MS PLOWS SPOKE TO HER SUBMISSION.  SHE DREW COUNCIL’S 
ATTENTION TO THE POSSIBILITY OF SPONTANEOUS PROTESTS 

OCCURRING, PARTICULARLY GIVEN THE ABILITY TO DRAW LARGE 
GROUPS OF PEOPLE TOGETHER AT SHORT NOTICE VIA SOCIAL MEDIA. 

ATTENDANCE:  COUNCILLOR ACLAND RETURNED TO THE MEETING AT 3.40PM. 

MS PLOWS NOTED THE IMPORTANCE OF THE RIGHT TO PROTEST, 
ENCOURAGED EMPATHY TOWARDS HOMELESS PEOPLE, AND ANSWERED 

QUESTIONS. 

 

5.44 MS GWEN STRUIK (13363)  

MS STRUIK SPOKE TO HER SUBMISSION.  SHE EXPLAINED THE 
IMPORTANCE OF THE RIGHT TO PROTEST AND NOTED HER CONCERNS 

THAT CIVIL LIBERTIES WERE BEING REDUCED IN NEW ZEALAND. 

MS STRUIK ANSWERED QUESTIONS AND NOTED THAT, EVEN WITH A 

REQUIREMENT TO NOTIFY, SOME PROTESTS WOULD STILL TAKE PLACE 
WITHOUT NOTIFICATION. 

5.45 MS RONA SPENCER (13364)   

MS SPENCER SPOKE TO HER SUBMISSION AND EMPHASIZED THE 
IMPORTANCE OF THE RIGHT TO PROTEST.  SHE SAID THE DRAFT BYLAW 

WOULD BE DIFFICULT FOR COUNCIL TO ADMINISTER AND SUGGESTED 
IT BE ABANDONED.  MS SPENCER ANSWERED QUESTIONS. 

5.46 MS TERESA O’CONNOR (13166) VOICE NELSON  

MS O’CONNOR SPOKE TO THE SUBMISSION FROM VOICE NELSON. SHE 
SAID THAT A NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENT FOR PROTESTS WOULD BE 



 

10 M2703 

N
e
ls

o
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 M

in
u
te

s
 -

 2
1
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
7
 

ACCEPTABLE, ALTHOUGH IT WAS STILL IMPORTANT FOR SPONTANEOUS 
PROTESTS TO BE ABLE TO OCCUR. 

MS O’CONNOR ALSO NOTED HER CONCERNS REGARDING 
HOMELESSNESS AND SUGGESTED COUNCIL CONCENTRATE ON THIS 

ISSUE RATHER THAN ON PROTEST ISSUES.  SHE ANSWERED 
QUESTIONS AND SAID THAT REQUIRING NOTIFICATION FOR PROTESTS 
COULD BECOME A BARRIER TO BEING HEARD. 

ATTENDANCE:  COUNCILLOR NOONAN LEFT THE MEETING FROM 4.13PM TO 
4.14PM.   

5.47 MR LEON STAIKOPOULOS (13268)   

MR STAIKOPOULOS SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION, AND URGED COUNCIL 
TO ENSURE THE DRAFT BYLAW WAS NOT TOO RESTRICTIVE. 

5.48 MR CAMERON FORBES (13145)   

MR FORBES SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION.  HE NOTED HIS CONCERNS 

REGARDING THE EFFECT OF THE DRAFT BYLAW ON VULNERABLE 
PEOPLE IN THE CITY, AND SPOKE ABOUT THE DIFFICULTIES THAT 
HOMELESS PEOPLE FACED. 

MR FORBES ANSWERED QUESTIONS, AND SAID THAT A REQUIREMENT 
TO NOTIFY COUNCIL OF PLANNED PROTESTS MAY DISENFRANCHISE 

SOME PEOPLE. 

5.49 MR BILL EVANS (13370)   

MR EVANS SPOKE TO HIS SUBMISSION AND TABLED A DOCUMENT 
(A1804564).  HE EMPHASISED THE IMPORTANCE OF THE RIGHT TO 
PROTEST. 

GROUP MANAGER STRATEGY AND ENVIRONMENT, CLARE BARTON, 
EXPLAINED THAT THE PHOTOGRAPHS ACCOMPANYING MR EVANS’ 

SUBMISSION HAD BEEN DISTRIBUTED TO COUNCILLORS BUT NOT TO 
THE PUBLIC, DUE TO COUNCIL’S OBLIGATIONS REGARDING PRIVACY 
CONCERNS. 

ATTACHMENTS 

1 A1804564 - BILL EVANS TABLED DOCUMENT  

5.50 GRAEME O’BRIEN 

IN RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS, MR O’BRIEN SUGGESTED THAT 
PROVIDING NOTIFICATION OF PLANNED PROTESTS TO COUNCIL AND 

THE POLICE WAS A COURTESY, AND SHOULD NOT LIMIT THE INHERENT 
RIGHT TO PROTEST. 

ATTENDANCE:  COUNCILLOR LAWREY LEFT THE MEETING AT 4.34PM. 

5.51 SUMMARY 



 

M2703 11 

N
e
ls

o
n
 C

ity
 C

o
u
n
c
il M

in
u
te

s
 - 2

1
 Ju

n
e
 2

0
1
7
 

HER WORSHIP THE MAYOR ASKED COUNCILLORS WHAT INFORMATION 
THEY WOULD LIKE TO SEE IN THE DELIBERATIONS REPORT, AND THE 

FOLLOWING ADVICE WAS REQUESTED 

 QUESTIONS REGARDING THE LEGAL ADVICE PROVIDED TO 

COUNCIL, INCLUDING: 

 IS THERE A SUFFICIENT EVIDENTIAL PREMISE FOR THE 
BYLAW? 

 IS REQUIRING A PERMIT AN UNREASONABLE LIMIT ON 
FREEDOM OF EXPRESSION? 

 ARE THERE OTHER LAWS THAT CAN DEAL WITH THE SAME 
AMENITY VALUES REGARDING PROTESTS, SLEEPING AND 
RUBBISH WITHOUT A BYLAW? 

 CAN NEGOTIATIONS BE DELEGATED TO ANOTHER GROUP? 

 ARE ALL FACTORS OF THE BYLAW LAWFUL?  FOR EXAMPLE, 

IS A BYLAW NEEDED FOR LIGHTING? 

 IS THERE A LEGAL RISK IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE 
DRAFT BYLAW BEING LINKED TO THE ISSUES REGARDING 

LEWIS STANTON? 

ATTENDANCE:  COUNCILLOR ACLAND LEFT THE MEETING AT 4.39PM. 

 ADVICE REGARDING WELLINGTON CITY COUNCIL’S DRAFT 
BYLAW, ESPECIALLY IN RESPECT OF THE REQUIREMENT TO 

NOTIFY COUNCIL OF PLANNED PROTESTS, INCLUDING WHAT 
ADVICE REGARDING THE WELLINGTON CITY COUNCIL BYLAW 
HAD BEEN PROVIDED TO COUNCIL PRIOR TO APPROVAL OF THE 

DRAFT BYLAW FOR CONSULTATION;; 

 ADVICE REGARDING WHETHER A BAN ON SLEEPING IN THE 

STREET WOULD BE IN CONTRAVENTION OF THE NEW ZEALAND 
BILL OF RIGHTS ACT; 

 ADVICE REGARDING WHETHER THE PROPOSED PENALTIES 

WERE PROPORTIONATE TO THE MATTERS THE DRAFT BYLAW 
SOUGHT TO CONTROL; 

 ADVICE REGARDING WHETHER CRIMINAL OFFENCES OR OTHER 
POLICE POWERS COULD BE APPLIED TO ADDRESS THE MATTERS 
THE DRAFT BYLAW SOUGHT TO CONTROL; 

 WHETHER THE POLICE HAD BEEN CONSULTED IN DEVELOPMENT 
OF THE DRAFT BYLAW; 

 ADVICE REGARDING HOW LONG INFORMATION WOULD BE KEPT 
BY COUNCIL FOR; 



 

12 M2703 

N
e
ls

o
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 M

in
u
te

s
 -

 2
1
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
7
 

 ADVICE REGARDING WHICH OTHER LOCAL AUTHORITIES HAD 
SIMILAR BYLAW PROVISIONS, AND DETAILS REGARDING THESE, 

INCLUDING WHETHER ANY OTHER LOCAL AUTHORITY INCLUDED 
A BYLAW PROVISION REQUIRING A PERMIT TO PROTEST; AND 

 THE POTENTIAL COSTS OF DEFENDING ANY LEGAL ACTIONS 
BROUGHT AGAINST COUNCIL AS A RESULT OF THE DRAFT 
BYLAW, SHOULD IT BE PASSED IN ITS CURRENT FORM. 

 
 

 
 
There being no further business the meeting ended at 4.48pm. 

 

Confirmed as a correct record of proceedings: 

 

 

 

 Chairperson    Date 

          


	1.	Apologies
	2.	Confirmation of Order of Business
	3.	Interests
	5. Late Submissions on the Draft City Amenity Bylaw
	6. Hearing of Submissions on the Draft City Amenity Bylaw
	Mr Graeme O'Brien (submission 13134) Democracy Now Mr O’Brien spoke to his submission and tabled a document (A1802719).  He answered questions regarding Part 13 of the Bylaw and said there should have been public engagement prior to the Council decision to establish a Bylaw.  Attachments 1	A1802719 - Graeme O'Brien Tabled document  � �Mr Dan McGuire (submission 12880) 	 Mr McGuire spoke to his submission.  He suggested the Bylaw would be tested in court at the ratepayers’ expense.		 5.3	Mr Mike Cunliffe for Ms Sarah Martin (submission 13133) on behalf of Public Service Association	 Mr Cunliffe spoke to the Public Service Association (PSA) submission and confirmed the PSA wished to have the Bylaw withdrawn.  He answered questions and agreed that notification in Part 13 as opposed to a permit would be acceptable. Attendance:  Councillors Rutledge and Skinner joined the meeting at 9.45am   Ms Raewyn Scott (submission 13081) The submitter did not attend the hearing. Mr Darryl Ware (submission 13106) 	 Mr Ware spoke to his submission.  He answered questions and agreed that notification for protests would be acceptable.  5.6	Mr Tom Taylor (submission 13253)  Mr Taylor spoke to his submission and answered questions.  Ms Susan Hawthorne (submission 13115) Voice Nelson	 Ms Hawthorne spoke to her submission and noted Part 13 was the aspect that concerned her most.  She answered questions and agreed that notification for protests would be acceptable.     Mr Lawrence Carter (submission 13113) 	 Mr Carter spoke to his submission and tabled a document (A1802862). He answered questions and suggested that the proposed bylaw did not provide reasonable balance.   Attachments 1	A1802862 - Lawrence Carter Tabled document  � �Mr Peter Riley (submission 13120)  The submitter did not attend the hearing. Ms Evey McAuliffe (submission 13124) 	 Ms McAuliffe spoke to her submission and answered questions. She noted that there had been no issue with protests in Nelson and felt the Bylaw was not necessary.  Attendance: Councillor Lawrey left the meeting from 10.15am to 10.22am. Mr Carl Horn (13179)  Mr Horn spoke to his submission and proposed specific amendments to the Bylaw.  He suggested that permits and fines were not necessary, and that experts should be called in to deal with people sleeping in the street.  Mr Horn answered questions. Ms Jan Marsh (13129) Nelson Religious Society of Friends (Quakers) Ms Marsh spoke to the submission from the Nelson Religious Society of Friends (Nelson Quakers) and advised that Nelson Quakers were concerned that their right of free speech or the ability to set up a stall outside a shop, with the permission of the shop owner, would be impeded.  Attendance: The meeting adjourned for morning tea from 10.29 am to 10.45am. Mr Brendan Santorini (submission 13343)  Mr Santorini spoke to his submission and answered questions.  He suggested that the Wellington City Council Consolidated Bylaw of 2008 was a better option. Mrs Jacquie Walters (12903) Walters PR	 Mrs Walters spoke to her submission and answered questions. She noted her concerns with banning sleeping in the central city without an available and compassionate alternative, and suggested there was no issue with protests being problematic. Attendance: Councillor Rutledge left the meeting from 10.55 am to 11.00am. Mrs Ali Boswijk (13164) Mrs Boswijk spoke to her submission and noted that there was a need to have an environment beneficial to business in the CBD however she felt the proposed Bylaw was going too far in too many directions Ms Debs Martin (13149)  Ms Martin spoke to her submission.  She noted that there was no history of complaints regarding protest marches and suggested Council should be concerned with people sleeping on the streets.  She answered questions relating to public safety and suggested this was the responsibility of the Police, rather than Council.   5.17	Ms Julie Nevin (13121)  Ms Nevin spoke to her submission and answered questions on Council’s decision to develop the proposed Bylaw.   Mr Murray Leaning (13160) The submitter did not attend the hearing. Mr Richard Sullivan (13163)  Mr Sullivan spoke to his submission via teleconference and noted he opposed the draft bylaw in its entirety.  Attendance: Councillor Noonan left the meeting from 11.32am to 11.36am. Ms Ami Kennedy (13192) Friends of the Maitai Ms Kennedy spoke her submission.  Mr Ian Day (13165)  Mr Day spoke to his submission and suggested the draft bylaw would increase bureaucracy and be a cost to rates.  He answered questions and suggested that the perception of the draft bylaw was that rights were being taken away from the public.  Mr Bill Lewis (13335)	 Mr Lewis spoke to his submission.  Penny Molnar (13256)	 Penny Molnar and Rachel Boyack spoke to the submission from Community Action Network and answered questions.  They asked Council to consider the wider implications of the draft bylaw. Attendance: Councillors Rutledge and Noonan left the meeting from 11.55am to 11.59am, Councillor Skinner left the meeting from 11.58am to 12.01pm, and Councillor Matheson left the meeting from 12.03pm to 12.06pm.   Ms Alison Arron (13210) 	 Ms Arron advised that Mr Mike Cunliffe had asked her to present a petition, asking Council to adopt the Wellington City Council Bylaw provisions regarding protests.  She noted it had been signed by over 500 people. Her Worship the Mayor received the petition (A1802949).  Ms Arron spoke to her submission and answered questions. Attachments 1	A1802949 - Alison Arron Petition  � �Attendance: Councillor Dahlberg left the meeting from 12.17pm to 12.21pm.  Mr Stephen Ralph Lee (13360)	 Mr Lee spoke to his submission and answered questions. Mr Richard Osmaston (13188)  NZ Money Free Party	 Mr Osmaston spoke to his submission and answered questions.  He noted he objected to the draft bylaw as it took away the opportunity for peoples’ voice to be heard. 5.27	Summary Her Worship the Mayor asked councillors what information they would like to see in the officer report to the deliberations meeting, and the following was requested: What input from public could have been included in the  process of drawing up a bylaw; A copy of the Wellington City Council document referred to in the petition; and A list of similar draft bylaws from other Councils, noting that officers had referred to these previously.  Attendance: The meeting adjourned for lunch from 12.35pm to 1.35pm, during which time Councillors Acland, Lawrey and Skinner left the meeting. In response to questions raised by submitters during the morning session, Her Worship the Mayor explained the reasons why Council was conducting this bylaw process rather than the Planning and Regulatory Committee. Attendance:  Councillor Lawrey returned to the meeting at 1.36pm. Mr Gavin Amey (13245) 	 The submitter did not attend the hearing. Mr John-Paul Pochin (13260) Mr Pochin spoke to his submission.  He noted his concerns regarding the draft bylaw, and in particular, how it would affect homeless people living in Nelson. Attendance:  Councillor Acland returned to the meeting at 1.39pm, Councillor Skinner returned to the meeting at 1.42pm, and Councillor Fulton left the meeting at 1.43pm. Mr Frank Saxton on behalf of Mr Brent Higgins (13226) 	 Mr Saxton tabled a copy of Mr Higgins’ submission (A1803328), which he read. Attachments 1	A1803328 - Brent Higgins Tabled document  � �Attendance:  Councillor Fulton returned to the meeting at 1.46pm.   Mr Peter Sutton (13232) 	 Mr Sutton tabled a document (A1803333) and spoke to his submission.  He emphasised the importance of placing as few limits on rights as possible and suggested that legal action may follow if the draft bylaw was passed in its current form.  Mr Sutton answered questions. Attachments 1	A1803333 - Peter Sutton Tabled document  � �Mr Ren Kempthorne (13328) 	 The submitter did not attend the hearing. Youth Councillors (13261)	 Jenna Stallard, Chekodi Fearnley-Fitzgerald, Cassie Hagan and Emily Rais spoke to the Youth Council submission.  They explained that youth were divided on the issue, and explained the views of youth in support of clause 11, as well as those who were not in support of clause 11.   Attendance:  Councillor Rutledge left the meeting at 2.05pm  Ms Stallard, Ms Fearnley-Fitzgerald, Ms Hagan and Ms Rais also emphasised the importance of education and ease of obtaining permits, should the bylaw go ahead as drafted, and answered questions. Attendance:  Councillor Fulton left the meeting from 2.15pm to 2.17pm. Amme Hiser (Late) (13375)	 The submitter did not attend the hearing. Ms Leigh Ramsay (13311) 	 The submitter did not attend the hearing. Mr Nik Rakels (13341) 	 Mr Rakels spoke to his submission and tabled a document (A1803342).  He said that clause 11 of the draft bylaw would have no effect on Lewis Stanton, but would affect many other people.  Mr Rakels answered questions. Attachments 1	A1803342 - Nik Rakels Tabled document  � �Mr Peter Riley on behalf of Sir Geoffrey Palmer (13299)  Mr Riley spoke to his own submission, and to that from Sir Geoffrey Palmer.  He expressed concerns that the draft bylaw breached rights included within the New Zealand Bill of Rights Act, and noted that any restrictions on citizens as a result of the bylaw should be the least possible intrusion on their right. Mr Riley encouraged Council to reach a mediated outcome with Mr Stanton, and answered questions. Mr Jim Cable (13353) 	 Mr Cable spoke to his submission.  He noted the importance of the right to protest, and suggested the bylaw instead focus on preventing people from sleeping on the streets.  Mr Cable answered questions.   Mr David Ayre (13259) Mr Ayre spoke to his submission and outlined his concerns regarding the bylaw.  He noted the community had responded strongly to the proposed bylaw and encouraged Council to listen to community views on the issue.  Mr Ayre answered questions. Ms Iona Jelf (13359) 	 Ms Jelf tabled a document, which she read (A1804559).  She noted her concerns regarding the requirement to seek a permit to protest, as well as the clauses in the bylaw preventing sleeping on the streets. Attachments 1	A1804559 - Iona Jelf Tabled document  � �Attendance:  Councillors Matheson and Walker left the meeting at 3.00pm. Mr Burke Hunter (13361) 	 Mr Hunter spoke about the importance of freedoms of assembly, expression, association and movement, and outlined his personal experiences of taking part in protests. Attendance:  Councillors Matheson and Walker returned to the meeting at 3.08pm. Mr Hunter answered questions. Attendance:  The meeting adjourned for afternoon tea from 3.13pm to 3.29pm, and Councillor Acland left the meeting at 3.30pm. Ms Dai Mitchell (13349)  Ms Mitchell spoke to her submission.  She explained her concerns regarding the draft bylaw in relation to the New Zealand Bill of Rights Act, and added her concerns regarding the effect the draft bylaw would have on homeless people. Ms Joanna Plows (13362) 	 Ms Plows spoke to her submission.  She drew Council’s attention to the possibility of spontaneous protests occurring, particularly given the ability to draw large groups of people together at short notice via social media. Attendance:  Councillor Acland returned to the meeting at 3.40pm. Ms Plows noted the importance of the right to protest, encouraged empathy towards homeless people, and answered questions.  Ms Gwen Struik (13363)  Ms Struik spoke to her submission.  She explained the importance of the right to protest and noted her concerns that civil liberties were being reduced in New Zealand. Ms Struik answered questions and noted that, even with a requirement to notify, some protests would still take place without notification. Ms Rona Spencer (13364) 	 Ms Spencer spoke to her submission and emphasized the importance of the right to protest.  She said the draft bylaw would be difficult for Council to administer and suggested it be abandoned.  Ms Spencer answered questions. Ms Teresa O’Connor (13166) Voice Nelson  Ms O’Connor spoke to the submission from Voice Nelson. She said that a notification requirement for protests would be acceptable, although it was still important for spontaneous protests to be able to occur. Ms O’Connor also noted her concerns regarding homelessness and suggested Council concentrate on this issue rather than on protest issues.  She answered questions and said that requiring notification for protests could become a barrier to being heard. Attendance:  Councillor Noonan left the meeting from 4.13pm to 4.14pm.   Mr Leon Staikopoulos (13268) 	 Mr Staikopoulos spoke to his submission, and urged Council to ensure the draft bylaw was not too restrictive. Mr Cameron Forbes (13145) 	 Mr Forbes spoke to his submission.  He noted his concerns regarding the effect of the draft bylaw on vulnerable people in the city, and spoke about the difficulties that homeless people faced. Mr Forbes answered questions, and said that a requirement to notify Council of planned protests may disenfranchise some people. Mr Bill Evans (13370) 	 Mr Evans spoke to his submission and tabled a document (A1804564).  He emphasised the importance of the right to protest. Group Manager Strategy and Environment, Clare Barton, explained that the photographs accompanying Mr Evans’ submission had been distributed to councillors but not to the public, due to Council’s obligations regarding privacy concerns. Attachments 1	A1804564 - Bill Evans Tabled document  � �Graeme O’Brien In response to questions, Mr O’Brien suggested that providing notification of planned protests to Council and the Police was a courtesy, and should not limit the inherent right to protest. Attendance:  Councillor Lawrey left the meeting at 4.34pm. Summary Her Worship the Mayor asked councillors what information they would like to see in the deliberations report, and the following advice was requested Questions regarding the legal advice provided to Council, including: Is there a sufficient evidential premise for the bylaw? Is requiring a permit an unreasonable limit on freedom of expression? Are there other laws that can deal with the same amenity values regarding protests, sleeping and rubbish without a bylaw? Can negotiations be delegated to another group? Are all factors of the bylaw lawful?  For example, is a bylaw needed for lighting? Is there a legal risk in the development of the draft bylaw being linked to the issues regarding Lewis Stanton? Attendance:  Councillor Acland left the meeting at 4.39pm. Advice regarding Wellington City Council’s draft bylaw, especially in respect of the requirement to notify Council of planned protests, including what advice regarding the Wellington City Council bylaw had been provided to Council prior to approval of the draft bylaw for consultation;; Advice regarding whether a ban on sleeping in the street would be in contravention of the New Zealand Bill of Rights Act; Advice regarding whether the proposed penalties were proportionate to the matters the draft bylaw sought to control; Advice regarding whether criminal offences or other police powers could be applied to address the matters the draft bylaw sought to control; Whether the police had been consulted in development of the draft bylaw; Advice regarding how long information would be kept by Council for; Advice regarding which other local authorities had similar bylaw provisions, and details regarding these, including whether any other local authority included a bylaw provision requiring a permit to protest; and The potential costs of defending any legal actions brought against Council as a result of the draft bylaw, should it be passed in its current form. 

